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Death of Woodland Hill Carrier
Prompts Investigation Finding

A

By Ray Hill, President

s you all know, NALC suffered a tragic loss on July
6, 2018 when Woodland Hills’ Letter Carrier and
28-year Branch 2902 member Peggy Frank died
while delivering a mounted route in blistering,
117 degree heat. Peggy had been off work since
March 22, 2018 due to an on-the-job ankle injury and it was
her first day back to work when she died.
After Peggy’s death, The U.S. Department of Labor’s
Occupational Safety and Health Administration, better known
as OSHA, conducted an investigation in the Woodland Hills
Post Office and OSHA’s investigation is now complete. As a
result of their investigation, on 01/02/2019, OSHA issued the
USPS a “Citation and Notification of Penalty” (hereinafter
referred to as “Citation”).

(1)], which was contained in OSHA inspection number 538158, citation number 1, item number 1 and was
affirmed as a final order on October 24, 2014, with
respect to a workplace located at 14200 E 32nd Street
South, Independence, Missouri 64055.

OSHA’s citation describes
violations of the Occupational Safety
and Health Act of 1970 that were
found in Peggy’s case and the
penalties listed in the citation are
based on these violations.

3) Provide heat stress training to all levels of supervisors/
management and employees that includes the following:

The following quoted information (printed in italics) is taken
directly from the Citation:

c.) The employers procedures for responding to symptoms of possible heat-related illness and for contacting
emergency medical services, if needed.

Among other methods, feasible and acceptable means of
hazard abatement include the following:
1) Develop and implement a heat acclimatization program
for employees starting a new job or returning to work after
an extended absence
2) Develop and implement control measures to include,
but not limited to, engineering, administrative, and personal protective equipment

a.) The principles of acclimatization and implementation of
the program
b.) The importance of employees immediately reporting to
their supervisors/management any signs of heat related
illness in themselves or their coworkers

“…Citation 1 Item 1 Type of Violation: Repeat
OSH ACT of 1970 Section (5) (a) (1): :The employer did
not furnish employment and a place of employment which
were free from recognized hazards that were causing
or likely to cause death or serious physical harm to
employees in that employees were exposed to excessive
heat hazards:

d.) Prevention methods and first aid of heat-related illness
before employees begin working in a hot environment
e.) Having supervisors/management conduct in-person
evaluations of employees complaining of heat-related
symptoms and arranging for medical attention, when
necessary
ABATEMENT DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR
THIS ITEM
Date By Which Violation Must Be Abated 01/22/2019
Proposed Penalty $129,336.00

Mail routes within Woodland Hills, California: On July
6, 2018 a letter carrier was delivering mail with a heat
index in excess of 108 degrees F, which is categorized
as “DANGER” by the National Oceanic and Atmospheric
Administration. The employee was exposed to heatrelated hazards and died as a result of hyperthermia. The
U.S. Postal service was previously cited for a violation
of this occupational safety and health standard or its
equivalent standard [OSH ACT of 1970 Section (5) (a)

“Citation 1 Item 2 Type of Violation: Repeat
29 CFR 1904.29 (b) (3): The employer did not enter
each recordable injury or illness on the OSHA 300 Log
and 301 Incident Report within seven (7) calendar days
2
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After receipt of the Citation from OSHA, USPS first responded with option #2, requesting an informal conference, which
was conducted telephonically on January 16, 2019. NALC
National Director of Safety and Health, Manny Peralta,
participated during the informal teleconference and I did as
well. It was extremely important that Manny was involved in the
conference because he has more knowledge than any other
NALC Representative on the topic of heat related safety.
During the conference the attorney representing the USPS
wanted OSHA’s Regional Director (RD) to specify exactly how
USPS should, “Develop and implement a heat acclimatization
program for employees starting a new job or returning to work
after an extended absence.” The OSHA RD made it clear, in no
uncertain terms, that OSHA would not tell USPS exactly how
they should develop a heat acclimatization program. OSHA’s
RD strongly suggested that USPS should actually do some
research and look into programs that might already be in place.
The OSHA RD also suggested that USPS seek guidance
from NALC.
Manny Peralta’s participation in the conference was important because he was able to respond to, and rebut, a few of
the comments that were made by the USPS attorney. After the
first informal conference, USPS requested a second informal
conference that was conducted telephonically on January 28,
2019. Much like the first informal conference, the main thrust
of the second informal conference was the USPS attorney’s
futile attempt to get OSHA to describe exactly what USPS
should do to “develop and implement a heat acclimatization
program.” Once again the participants from OSHA made it clear
that OSHA would not tell USPS exactly how to develop and
implement a heat acclimatization program and that they needed
to do some research and figure out how in the hell to get this
done on their own, without OSHA spoon-feeding them.
As Manny Peralta pointed out during both informal
teleconferences, far too many Letter Carriers have suffered
heat related illnesses in various parts of the country over the
past several years and a few of these illnesses proved to be
fatal, including Peggy Frank’s. Although Manny didn’t use these
exact words, he basically made his point that it is way past time
for USPS to finally pull their collective head(s) out of the sand
and get their act(s) together with regards to protecting Letter
Carriers from heat related illness and the tragic consequences
of such.
After the two informal conferences with OSHA, USPS then
exercised option #3 and have contested OSHA’s Citation and
the nearly $150, 000 in penalties proposed. The case will
now go before the Occupational Safety and Health Review Commission, which settles workplace safety and health
disputes between the U.S. Department of Labor and employers
such as USPS.

of receiving information that a recordable injury or illness
has occurred:
Woodland Hills Station:
a) On July 7, 2018, a letter carrier was on route and
suffered heat exhaustion. The work-related illness was not
recorded on the OSHA 300 Log.
b) On September 28, 2018, a letter carrier was on route
and suffered heat exhaustion. The work-related illness
was not recorded on the OSHA 300 Log.
The U.S. Postal service was previously cited for a violation of this occupational safety and health standard or its
equivalent standard [29 CFR 1904.29 (b) (3)], which was
contained in OSHA inspection number 1122884, citation
number 1, item number 1A and was affirmed as a final order
on June 19, 2017, with respect to a workplace located
at 8827 Monard Drive, Silver Spring, Maryland 20910.
The U.S. Postal service was previously cited for a violation of this occupational safety and health standard or its
equivalent standard [29 CFR 1904.29 (b) (3)], which was
contained in OSHA inspection number 955929, citation
number 1, item number 1 and was affirmed as a final order on March 21, 2014, with respect to a workplace located at 1606 Huron Street, Ypsilanti, Michigan 48197.
The U.S. Postal service was previously cited for a violation of this occupational safety and health standard or its
equivalent standard [29 CFR 1904.29 (b) (3)], which was
contained in OSHA inspection number 974326, citation
number 2, item number 1 and was affirmed as a final order on July 24, 2014, with respect to a workplace located
at 7451 Templhof Drive, Indianapolis, Indiana 46241.
ABATEMENT DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR
THIS ITEM
Date By Which Violation Must Be Abated 01/22/2019
Proposed Penalty $20,328.00
TOTAL PROPOSED PENALTIES $149,664.00
As you have just read, OSHA has cited USPS for repeated
violations and has proposed monetary penalties totaling $149,
664.00.
Upon receipt of the Citation from OSHA, USPS had 3 options in which they could respond.
1) They could abate the hazards and pay the fines and be done
with it, or
2) Request an Informal Conference during which there could be
potential for reclassification of the violations and reduction of the
penalties/fines, or
3) Contest any portion of the Inspection findings. If
USPS chooses this option the case will go to trial before an
administrative judge.

continued on page 4
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Investigation Finding

M-01302 Pre-arbitration Settlement
February 24, 1998, H90N-4H-C 95018608
This grievance was resolved at the Pre-Arbitration “step”
of the grievance procedure with the following language:

Continued from page 3

Manny Peralta has requested party status so that NALC is
involved in the proceedings to protect the interests of all Letter
Carriers as it pertains to this Citation. It will probably take 1 to 2
years before the case is actually heard before a judge. I want to
thank Manny Peralta for his invaluable assistance in this matter
and I will keep you all posted on any new information I receive
pertaining to this OSHA Citation.

The issue in this grievance is whether management
violated the National Agreement when a local policy was
issued and carriers were required to sign off that they
were present when the information was read to them.
After reviewing this matter, the parties mutually agreed
to the following: There is no requirement that a
carrier sign that the subject information was
received (emphasis added).

Do Not Sign on the Dotted Line

Lately I have been hearing complaints from Stewards and
Carriers about Management telling Carriers to sign their names
or write their initials on various “locally developed forms” that
are not approved USPS Forms. For example, management has
asked Carriers to sign or initial on a locally developed form (or
forms) indicating that they have been present at a stand up talk,
that they have viewed a “training” video, that they have had
their attendance reviewed or discussed with them, that they
have been given an official discussion, etc. NALC has always
challenged management’s attempt to require Letter Carriers to
sign locally developed forms through the grievance procedure
and we have always been successful in our challenges.
Printed below (in italics) are two Step 4 Decisions and one
Pre-Arbitration decision that were resolved with the agreement
that Letter Carriers are not required to sign or initial locally developed forms.

The above Step 4 Decisions and Pre-Arbitration settlement
make it clear that Management may not require Carriers to sign
or initial any locally developed forms.
I will offer this one bit of advice to you all; do not sign
your name or write your initials on any locally developed
forms when asked by management to do so.
If Management in your office is asking you to do so, please
notify your Steward or call us here at the branch office so
that we may investigate and file the appropriate grievances, if
necessary.
Until next time, make an effort to attend our branch meetings
which are on the third Thursday of every month.

KNOW YOUR RIGHTS

M-00544 Step 4
July 5, 1985, H1N-1J-C 40875
This grievance was resolved at Step 4 of the grievance
procedure with the following language:

Step B Decision 4/21/03
“. . . DRT reminds the parties that DOIS may not be
utilized to set work and time standards or street times for
letter carriers and it may not be used as the sole basis for
discipline. Upon receipt of the last dispatch of mail, letter
carriers will assess the workload and upon request will be
provided PS Form 3996. After the appropriate dialogue
Management will address the employee’s request for time
to perform the duties of the assignment and where there
is not agreement the employee will be given appropriate
specific instructions.

Management may document the fact that specific
provisions of handbooks and manuals were reviewed
by the carriers and that information regarding vehicle
operations was given to the carriers. However, in
as much as there is no national requirement
for Carriers to acknowledge that the subject
information was received, carriers should not be
required to sign a local form (emphasis added).

Form 4584, Observation of Driving
Practices

M-00465 Step 4
September 1, 1982, H1N-1N-C 325
This grievance was resolved at Step 4 of the grievance
procedure with the following language:

To enforce a high standard of professional driving performance, you must complete Form 4584, Observation of
Safe Driving Practices, for each driver under your supervision semiannually and at other times deemed appropriate. You must familiarize yourself with defensive driving
techniques so that you know what the common driving
errors are, how they can be detected, and how they can
be prevented.

PS Form 2548-A is completed by the training agent and/
or immediate supervisor. The initialing of this form
by an employee is not a condition of employment
and employees should not be required to initial
the form under the threat of disciplinary action
(emphasis added).
4
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Happy to Be Here
By James Perryman, Executive Vice President

H

ello everyone. This is my 1st article for the Mail Bag
News as the Executive Vic President for Tri-Valley
Branch 2902. I have to give thanks and gratitude to the
members of Branch 2902 for having the confidence
in me to learn and grow to become a full-time branch officer.
I’m looking forward to my continuous learning and growing
experience to serve the branch to the very best of my ability.
I began my career with the United States Postal Service as
a Letter Carrier in 1986. I was 18 years old when I was hired. I
had many opportunities to apply for other positions within the
Postal Service. However, I chose to stay in the Letter Carrier
craft. One may think that I was young and dumb to want to
stay in the Letter Carrier craft with so many options, and yes, it
was a lot work and a lot of drama dealing with the delivery
and the collection of mail and the bullshit of management.
Nevertheless, I learned that the position of a Letter Carrier was a
secure position within the Postal Service. I also realized that I belonged to a union that was strong and supported its members.
I learned within the first three months of my career that my rights
were protected by the National Associations of Letter Carriers,
and all that I had to do was follow the rules. I also learned that
some managers would disrespect you and treat you like a piece
of shit if you did not stand up for your rights. The most important
thing that I realized when I began working as a Letter Carrier is
that I was making good money with good benefits and had a
good future. With all due respect to the other crafts or positions
within the Postal Service, it just appeared to me that they were
not secure positions and did not receive the same representation that the NALC was providing to the Letter Carrier craft.
That’s not to say that is was a piece of cake working in the
Letter Carrier craft. I experienced my fair share of bullshit from
management as well. I had to deal with false accusations and
the questioning of my work performance, attendance, and
conduct. I learned early in my career to not accept management’s nonsense and to challenge their inappropriate actions
and behavior. With the help of our local union, Branch 2902 I
prevailed in kicking management’s ass within the grievance procedures. You have to understand that back in those days, some
managers were pure assholes. Believe it or not, there were

Supervisors who wanted to physically fight me. It’s needless to
say who would have won the fight. However, I was wise enough
to know that I could lose my job after kicking that manager’s
ass, and I’m not a violent person. Not all managers were bad
and awful back in the day, but there were enough bad apples
in the barrel to make me step up to become pro-active and
become a Shop Steward.
I became an alternate Shop Steward in or about the year
1999. Yes, just like the words, in part, in the song by one of my
favorite artist, Prince “Two Thousand 0-0 oops out of time,”I
began to party like it was 1999. Management was officially out
of time taking advantage of Letter Carriers who were being
mistreated and harassed by Supervisors when there was no
union representation available on site on a daily basis at the San
Fernando Post Office.
In a short time period I became Chief Shop Steward of the
San Fernando Post Office. I knew the job was going to be
challenging and it was. I definitely had to dot my (I’s) and cross
my (T’s). When taking the roll as a Shop Steward you are
representing Letter Carriers, you become their voice. As a
Shop Steward you have to be honest and have integrity. You
must be able to lead by example and be in contract compliance at all times. It does not matter if you are carrying mail or
conducting work as a Shop Steward, you must follow the rules.
You will have a target on your back, because when following
all the rules it requires time to complete the task.
Some managers don’t understand or don’t want to understand that it will take a Carrier longer to complete an
assignment when applying all the rules, as opposed to a Carrier who is non-compliant within the rules. I was able to defend
my character by consistently remaining contractually compliant.
By staying the course, I was able to resolve many issues at
the lowest possible level, which gave me the opportunity to
exercise my ability to lead. The experience that I received representing Letter Carriers as a Shop Steward give me the opportunity to become a branch Trustee, Vice President, Senior Vice
President, and now the Executive Vice President.
So here I am. Over 31½ years as a Letter Carrier and over
continued on page 6
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Happy to Be Here

me to conduct business at union hall.
Last but not least. I want to thank retired Execute Vice
President Paul Drapkin for his dedication and outstanding work
for the members of this branch. Paul has demonstrated the
ability to be a great advocate, teacher, and leader while serving as a Shop Steward and a Branch Officer. During my first
two weeks as a full-time union officer, Paul has been very
nspirational and helpful while navigating me through the duties
and responsibilities of being the EVP of the branch. I was able
to witness Paul conduct himself in a professional manner as
a union leader during conversations with manager, Letter
Carriers, and branch Shop Stewards. When Paul addressed
issues, it didn’t matter if he was conducting meetings over
the phones or in person, his message was clear, he’s a no
nonsense, strictly business type of guy.
People sho knew Paul knew that he is a straight shooter and
not a bull-shitter. The time that I spent with Paul conducting
station visits and working at Union Hall, gave me the opportunity to observe the confidence that Letter Carriers had in his
knowledge of the contract and his ability to represent. I also
observed the respect that management demonstrated towards
him. I will always be grateful and thankful for the time we worked
together and I wish him a happy and blessed retirement.
I am very happy to be here and I look forward to meeting all
the members of Tri-Valley who do not have an opportunity to
attend the branch meetings.

Continued from page 5

20 years as a union representative, and now a full-time officer
of the branch. It was a journey to get here. All of the grievance meetings with management, consultations with Carriers,
and training from the union helped mold me to be the union
advocate that I am today. I want to give thanks to the union
members of San Fernando Post Office for their confidenc
e and support. I also want to thank management, both past and
present, at the San Fernando Post Office for working with me
to resolve most issues at the lowest possible level while improving the environment and the culture at the work place. The San
Fernando Post Office has come a long way from those
dog days and I am confident in the local leadership of Vice
President/Chief Shop Steward, Albert Reyes and Shop
Stewards Martin Diaz and Robert Tracy to continue to stay
the positive course, all of whom were also instrumental in my
success as a union local leader. In addition, I want to thank
ex-Shop Steward, CC Flatts who demonstrated a great
example on how to lead while earning the respect of members
and managers.
At the time of writing this article, I have conducted station
visits in Fillmore, Moorpark, Chatsworth, Ojai, Thousand Oaks,
Ventura Main Office, and East Ventura Station, all of which
went very well. It gave me the opportunity to meet some of our
branch members and visit Post Offices for the first time that
I have not had the opportunity to visit before. During my visits I
was welcomed by the Letter Carriers and managers that were
very cordial. I also had the pleasure of meeting rural Carriers
and Clerks at some of the offices that were receptive as well. I
am looking forward to working with all the offices that Branch
2902 represents and I have confidence we can accomplish our
goals in being respectful, successful, and gainfully employed.
I want to thank our local President Ray Hill for his decision to acclimate me into the Execute Vice President position.
I had the opportunity to experience the challenging side of
representing as a full-time branch leader and Ray has made
it look easy. Although, it appears that he is dealing with a full
plate of duties and responsibilities, he conducts his business in
a professional manner that I admire and respect.
The assistance that I receive from our Branch Recording
Secretary/Shop Steward Laura Rowe and Trustee/Shop
Steward Greg Gaddis has been very helpful, and I appreciate
their wisdom and guidance that they provided in navigating me
during the first weeks of my promotion. I also thank local branch
President Emeritus Frank Salazar who has been my long-time
mentor and very instrumental in my success as a union leader
and advocate. They all have made it a wonderful experience for

Pictured above is Dennis Graham, retiree from the
Reseda P.O. as he accepts his 45-year Union
Membership Pin as presented by Bev Sucich, Director
of Retirees, at the February retiree luncheon. Thanks for
your many years of membership Dennis.
6
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Helping Hand

S

by Albert Reyes,Vice President

aying you are a member of the NALC should make
you stand tall with pride and confidence. Confidence
that you will be treated with dignity and respect on
the workroom floor at all times. Pride in the history of
over one hundred years that your union consistently has had
your back. We will always remember this history of our fellow
brothers and sisters who stood in solidarity to fight diligently to
advocate for what we have today. We know that the NALC
has been there for us but we must always remember is to be
there for one another.
Would you believe that fifty years ago a Letter Carrier’s
yearly salary was barely enough to qualify for food stamps and
welfare? Compare that with what you make today and let that
sink in for a while. It’s amazing how far we have come as Letter Carriers. But it wasn’t just handed to us. Individuals we
may never meet had to sacrifice daily setting the foundation for
collective bargaining. With our busy lives we may take for
granted this foundation. How many can remember what it was
like thirty, forty, even fifty years ago? Who ran the floor back
then, management or the Carriers?
Doing our part looking out for each other by keeping
management honest will help continue this fight for those who
come after us, for example, a newly hired CCA on the workroom floor. Other than the OJI or Shop Steward,are there
any other employees looking out for them and their rights?
Remember our first days and the experienced Carriers who
were there looking out for us? Do you think CCA’s starting later in the morning are being reminded by management to take
their ten-minute break? Do you think management is reminding
them to fill out their 3996 with every auxiliary swing they get?
Remember getting a completely filled out 3996 with every swing? This will avoid any miscommunication between
management and the auxiliary being given away.
Do you think management is educating employees on their
rights with important issues such as working off the clock or
skipping breaks and lunches? Giving two hours auxiliary (saying
it’s an hour) plus a full route on a coverage day and say, “You
better make six.” What about inputting Carriers pay correctly?,
track your hours! What about the use of cellphones? Do you
think management is properly educating employees when they
say, “Wait for my call in the morning to see if I can give you the

day off”? Or better yet, “Call me before 8:00am and I’ll let you
know if you’re not needed.” No, management is not. We need
to start holding them accountable.
Can CCA’s be required to remain on “stand-by” or remain at home for a call-in on days they are not scheduled to
work? The answer is NO! This also applies to OTDL Carriers in
regards to their non-scheduled days off. You are not required to
call in, verify, check in, or wait for a call. Check your schedule
before you leave daily and if you’re not scheduled then you’re
not scheduled to work. If management attempts to call you at
home or says “wait for my call” simply don’t answer your phone.
Eventually they will schedule you the proper way. If you answer
then be ready to report.
Using CCA’s as an example is important because they are
new employees to the craft and may not know much. Who’s
looking out for them? As experienced Carriers we all should.
CCA’s are Carriers too! What are we teaching them when “own
assignment” or “eigh hour” Carriers work off their assignments
on overtime for management? Taking overtime hours away from
OTDL Carriers or CCA’s is wrong and an Article 8 violation if not
done properly. For management and experienced Carriers to
make “sweetheart deals” so that management’s 6:00pm goal is
reached can only divide the floor. Clearly this is not looking out
for one another.
Nowhere is it written in the contract that Carriers need to
violate their own rights and the rights of others to make a
6:00pm goal. Clocking out at 6:00pm then speaking to management about parcels for the route is a violation. You are working for free. Even if you are about to go into penalty, first inform
management and allow them to make the decision to approve
or disapprove your overtime. Article 41.3.K states that supervisors shall not require, nor permit, employees to work off the
clock. If this is happening see your Shop Steward. Would this be
allowed during route inspection?
Look out for one another. Help each other. Some of us are at
work more than we are home. Hold management accountable.
If your office is slowly changing or falling apart just stand strong
in confidence and pride that your union is still strong. The Postal
Service will continue to change, but the NALC will always stand
with you! Be safe out there and if you haven’t done so already
download the NALC app!
7
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Group Life Insurance, G-001 Policy
By Chris Alessi, MBA/NSBA Representative

A

every $1000 per month of insurance up to $20,000. Any benefit
over $5,000 of insurance the rate decreases to 33 cents for
every $1000 not to exceed $20,000 of term insurance. It is
mandatory that when a branch purchases one or both of this
G-001 polices that it must provide coverage for all its active
members for the same amount of coverage though the MBA.
After a branch member retires, their branch group coverage
terminates under the group plan G-001 supplemental plans.
Not to worry, the MBA has a conversion period for retiring
members or the cancellation of policies by the branch.
Members previously under these plans have a 31-day option to
convert to an individual policy without taking a physical exam,
just a written application to the MBA. Under this conversion,
option the insurance amount cannot exceed the elected amount
of coverage that the branch has or had covering its active
members. Under this conversion, premiums are based on the
individual age at time of conversion. Branches can also benefit
from electing to give their members this added protection because a pro-rated portion of all unused premiums is refunded
annually to all the participating branches as an experience fund.
In closing,I want to say thank you to our Mail Bag News
Editor and Executive Vice President, Paul Drapkin, who has
done an excellent job for Branch 2902 in his many years of
great service. You will be missed dearly brother, but I know you
will enjoy your freedom and the great life of retirement!!
GOD BLESS YOU, and all our members and their families in
the year ahead.
In Solidarity Always.

s we start this New Year, it would be a good time to
evaluate your insurance needs to see if you will have
enough insurance in the case of a loved one or the
breadwinner of the family having passed on.
In February of 1985, our union the NALC and the MBA
established a $5,000 basic accidental Group Life Insurance
Policy called the G-001. Currently all active and retired NALC
members are provided this benefit at no cost to the members
or the branches. Branch Members are not required to pay any
premiums for this policy. The NALC pays for all the premiums for
the basic G-001 accidental death policies.
In addition to the coverage of basic G-001 policy, The MBA
offers supplemental group insurance policies to the branches
that elect to provide additional accidental death benefits and
or term Insurance for their Active ONLY branch members,
including CCA’s. No physical examination or individual
insurance applications are required for a member to be covered
by any of MBA’S Group G-001 policies.
The Supplemental Accidental Life Insurance plan will
insure the active branch member and CCA’s for only 3 cents for
every $1,000 per month of insurance up to $25,000 of death
benefit. There is no accumulated cash value attributed to either
of the G-001 policies. Death benefits are paid when a death is
a result of direct bodily injuries sustained by an accident based
on documentation from the pronouncing physician, coroner’s
office, or the medical examiner. MBA does not determine the
manner of death.
The Supplemental TERM Insurance plan on the other
hand pays a death benefit no matter what the cause is. Branch
members can have an extra protection at a rate of 44 cents for

KNOW YOUR RIGHTS

Fingering Mail

The Mail Bag News is the official publication of Tri-Valley
Branch 2902 (Chatsworth, California) of the National
Association of Letter Carriers. All opinions expressed are
those of the individual author(s) and do not necessarily
reflect the opinions of the NALC or its officers. The Mail Bag
News welcomes articles and letters to the editor; however
the editorial staff of The Mail Bag News assumes complete
authority to decide which letters are presented for
publication. Anonymous articles are not accepted. Permission is hereby granted to re-print articles. We just ask that
you give the author and the publication appropriate credit.

Carriers must be instructed not to finger mail when
driving, walking up or down steps or curbs, crossing
streets, or at any other time the practice would create
a hazard to the carrier or to the public.
It is equally important to caution employees that
sorting or reading addresses while a vehicle is in
motion is forbidden and cannot be allowed under any
circumstances. A vehicle must be properly stopped,
with its transmission in a parked position, before any
attempt is made to put the mail in order.
8
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NALC Health Benefit Plan –
1st Class Benefits
By Mary Stanley, Assistant Health Benefits Officer

W

ith a new year of 2019 upon us, many Carriers
have taken the big step of switching their health
plan to join our NALC HBP. To all those new
members, welcome to our family. I’d also like to
take the opportunity to say thank you to those long-time members of our Health Benefit Plan.
It can be challenging to find the right combination of
affordable cost and comprehensive coverage. I’m sure all the
new members have found an increase in their pay checks.
Our NALC HBP has always tried to keep the cost increase at
a minimum. They take pride in offering excellent benefits at
affordable premiums.
Keep in mind that a new year resets your deductible. The
calendar-year deductible is $300 per self, $600 per family
and $600 self plus one. To briefly cover some benefits under
the High Option, there is a cost savings if you stay within the
network of PPO providers. Preventive Care for an annual
routine physical exam, adult routine immunizations and tests,
well child care (through age 2) with a PPO, you pay nothing. Office visits with a PPO are $20 copayments. You pay
nothing for Laboratory services if you use Quest Diagnostics
or LabCorp. Prescription Drugs’ generic equivalents may be
filled with a 90-day supply from CVS/Caremark Pharmacy,

Target, or the mail order program. Certain drugs may require
prior approval. The following radiology/imaging services
require pre-certification: MRI, CT/CAT, MRA, NC, and PET.
Chiropractic care and acupuncture care are also covered.
Please see your HBP brochure for cost and a complete list
of other health coverages.
You can access the NALC Health Benefit Plan website at
www.nalchbp.org. You can call the HBP Customer Service
Department at 1(888) 636-6252 and PPO Locator Service at
1(877) 220-6252, Monday through Friday, 8:00a.m.-3:30p.m.
(EST). The 24-Hour Nurse Line is 1(877) 220-6252. Prescription Drug Program is 1(800) 933-NALC, 24/7. CVS/Specialty
Pharmacy is 1(800) 237-2767, Monday through Saturday,
7:30a.m. to 9:00p.m. (EST).
We (Joe Gutierrez and I) are here for you if you have any
questions. Our numbers are listed in the back of the Mail Bag
News. Wishing you all a Very Happy Easter and Happy Spring.
Stay Healthy.

Letter Carrier Political Fund
By making a contribution to the Letter Carrier Political
Fund, you are doing so voluntarily with the understanding
that your contribution is not a condition of membership in
the National Association of Letter Carriers or of employment by the Postal Service, nor is it part of Union dues. You
have a right to refuse to contribute without any reprisal. The
Letter Carrier Political Fund will use the money it receives
to contribute to candidates for federal office and undertake
other political spending as permitted by law. Your selection
shall remain in full force and effect until cancelled. Contributions to the Letter Carrier Political Fund are not deductible for federal income tax purposes. Federal law prohibits
the Letter Carrier Political Fund from soliciting contributions
from individuals who are not NALC members, executive
and administrative staff or their families. Any contribution
received from such an individual will be refunded to that
contributor. Federal law requires us to use our best efforts
to collect and report the name, mailing address, occupation
and name of employer of individuals whose contributions
exceed $200 per calendar year. Any guideline amount is
merely a suggestion, and an individual is free to contribute
more or less than the guideline suggests and the Union will
not favor or disadvantage anyone by reason of the amount
of their contribution or their decision not to contribute.

Pictured above is Branch 2902 Political Liaison David
Hyman (far left) and Branch 2902 Sgt-at-Arms Bob Golden
(far right) as they pay an educational visit to Congressman
Tony Cardenas’ office in D.C. to enlighten the Congressman on the importance of the four bills regarding the Postal
Service awaiting him to sign on to. Apparently it worked as
the just before going to press, The Mail Bag News learned
that the Congressman has signed on. Good work guys.
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Just when I thought I was out...
they pull me back in
- Michael Corleone, Godfather Part 3

W

By: Frank Salazar, President Emeritus

ell, I was about a year and a half into retirement
be-fore I was asked by President Ray Hill, if I would
like to help out in the Reseda Office. Since the
former Steward Jeff Hastert resigned, no one in
the office was willing to step up. I get it... being a Steward is
not an easy job. Who wants to put a target on their back? An
individual has to want to do this job, to look out for others, to be
responsible for the wellbeing of Letter Carriers on the workroom
floor and for upholding the princi-ples of the National
Agreement in the workplace. So, since no one wants to step
up, here I am.
Don’t get me wrong; I love retirement. During the first couple
of months, I missed the people I interacted with on a daily basis,
not the grievance work. I have been a Shop Steward since I was
24-years old, so when I retired, I got back to doing the things
I had no time for. I got around to dusting off the fishing poles,
watching Dodger games in the afternoon in the middle of the
week and planning some world travel, which I actually got to do
and at the same time I was able to scratch some items off my
bucket list.
Last October, I finally took that trip I always wanted to. I took
a trip to the Middle East, specifically Egypt, Jordan and Israel.

I never dreamed that I would see and climb the Great Pyramid
let alone ride a camel around the base of it or that I would see
the Sphinx, have lunch on the Nile River, wade into the Red
Sea or walk along the Mediterranean Ocean. It was truly awe
inspiring to see and roam the ancient city of Petra, which was
carved out of rock by hand and is said to have been settled as
early as 9,000 B.C. Talk about back in the day, that is a long
way back!
And, to see the holy city of Jerusalem, the Temple Mount,
to sail the Sea of Galilee and to float on the Dead Sea; to
experience the site where Christ was crucified and where he
was buried was truly remarkable. However, just when I thought
I was done with representing Letter Carriers and getting into
my retirement groove, President Hill made me an offer he knew
I couldn’t refuse. He gave me the opportunity to repre-sent the
letter carriers of Reseda. “Just when I thought I was out... they
pulled me back in.”
So, I’m back at what I have been doing for over three
decades; representing Letter Carriers. Ok, Reseda Letter
Carriers. I’m in your office every Thursday, so if you have a
problem, sign up to see me, I’m not a mind reader. Hasta luego!
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A New Congress Reintroduces
Bi-Partisan Postal Related Bills
By David Hyman, Branch 2902 Trustee & Political Liaison

G

Spring training is here. Can the Dodgers make it to the Worlds
Series three years in a row without Labor in the House? As
you may recall from last October’s Series, the Dodgers stayed
at the Marriott in Boston which had a labor dispute with the
local UNITE Union. The players exited the bus in the parking

reetings Sisters & Brothers. All four of the bills from
the last Congress have been re-introduced.The AntiPrivatization bill, House Resolution 33 by Stephen
Lynch (MA) & Rodney Davis (IL) has generated the
most support and is well on its way to having a bi-partisan
majority shortly. Julia Brownley and Tony Cardenas signed
onto the bill in late January. We hope to have the rest of our
local representatives on board within a week of the visit that
Bob Golden and I make to D.C. in late February to garner
support for this bill and the three others we are pushing.
This year the Six-Day Delivery bill is known as House
Resolution 54 by Gerry Connolly (VA) and Sam Graves (MO).
So far, only Brad Sherman is a co-sponsor from our area. The
Door Delivery bill was introduced again by Susan Davis (CA),
Peter King (NY) and David Joyce (OH). The Service Standards
bill was introduced by David McKinley (WV) and it is House
Resolution 60, of which Julia Brownley is a co sponsor.
Katie Hill is not on any of our bills yet but she is new and we
will be educating her. Please contact your member and have
them sign on to these bills as a co-sponsor.

structure to avoid the picket lines. They were offered other union
lodging, but for whatever reason stayed with the Marriott. Rusty
Hicks, the President of the Los Angeles Federation of Labor
attempted to reach out to the Dodger owners to resolve this
issue with an apology but this has not happened so there will
not be a Union Night at Dodgers Stadium this season and
we also will not be doing a branch membership appreciation
game.
“True wealth is not measured in money or status or power. It is measured in the legacy we leave
behind for those we love and those we inspire.”
— Cesar Chavez

Treasurer’s Report
12/18/18 - 1/14/19
General Account
Previous Balance
Receipts
Sub-Total
Disbursements
Total-on-Hand
Payroll Account
Previous Balance
Receipts
Sub-Total
Disbursements
Total-on-Hand
Convention Fund
Checking Acct #7 .15% rate-USPS-CU
Total of Convention Fund

Contingency Fund

$136,155.01
$38,724.76
$174,879.77
($40,408.02)
$134,471.75

C.D. 6mos .747% rate-Premier CU-#1
C.D. 6mos .648% rate-Premier CU-#2

$134,985.70
$18,000.00
$152,985.70
($18,283.38
$134,702.32

$108,704.61

MM Cert #21 26wks .25% rate-USPS-CU

$24,610.77

MM Cert #18 26wks .25% rate-USPS-CU

$22,910.05

MM Cert #19 26wks .25% rate-USPS-CU

$67,347.37

MM Checking #8 26wks .15% rate-USPS-CU

$46,066.03

C.D. 6mos .380% Priority One CU

$33,512.17

Total of Contingency Fund

$27,793.22

$11,717.90

C.D. (1) year 1.094% rate Premier CU- #3

Shares acct USPS-CU

$27,793.22

$86,490.88

Retiree Fund

$7.11
$401,366.89
$5,693.08

Daniel A. Gorman
Financial Secretary-Treasurer
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Caring for Loved
Ones with Dementia
or Alzheimer’s
Caregiving for someone with dementia or Alzheimer’s can pose many challenges. Mood swings,
difficulty with self-care or completing tasks, and even dangerous consequences of memory loss could
put your loved one at risk. Changes in behavior can come on
gradually or suddenly. Behaviors that seem unusual for the
person may be a sign of brain disorder and signals that your
loved one will need more constant supervision.
Failing to bathe or put on clothes
Emptying closets
Having emotional outbursts
Wandering or getting lost
Incontinence
Agitation
Difficulty being oriented to day and time
Your loved one may not be able to tell you why they are doing
such things and it is best not to argue with them about their
behaviors. Check with a doctor as there may be some medication that can assist in managing the
problem. Sometimes changing routines, improving socialization, and ensuring good nutrition and sleep
can reduce symptoms.
Recognizing the signs of dementia will help you to
bring information to medical specialists and to make
decisions that will ensure the safety of your loved
one. While it is difficult to watch the mental decline
of someone we care about, talking with a
professional counselor can assist with managing
feelings of grief and worry. Learn about available
resources for your loved one as well as
for you.
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RETIREES LUNCH
RAFFLE AT 12:30
Lori Stewart

MARCH

NALC Branch 2902 Shop Steward
Retired Letter Carrier
35 years of service
Moorpark, CA 93021
Email: Lschultzy@aol.com

Where:

Golden Panda
1825 Madera. Rd
Simi Valley

When:

Tuesday, March 19, 2019

Time:

11:00am to 1:00pm

Office: 805.368.0444
Toll Free: 800.527.0606

APRIL
Where:

Golden Panda
1825 Madera. Rd
Simi Valley

When:

Tuesday, April 16, 2019

Time:

11:00am to 1:00pm
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Moving Forward

TogETHEr
Serving Postal workers for over 86 Years

LOnG BEACH

• Get Paid Two Days Early! Your USPS paycheck
delivered to you TWO DAYS EARLY with direct deposit

3738 Bayer Ave., Suite 102
Long Beach, CA 90808

• Low Auto Loan Rates with 100% financing

nEw LOCATiOn

Toll Free: (877) 337-2728
Mon., Tues., Thurs. 9 am–5 pm
Wed. 8 am–5 pm
Fri. 9 am–6 pm

• FREE Checking and Visa® Debit Card
• Over 30,000 Fee-FREE ATMs
• FREE Mobile and Online Banking with Bill Pay
• 5,300+ Shared Branches

nORTH HOLLywOOD
11304 Chandler Blvd.
North Hollywood, CA 91603
Phone: (818) 769-4200

• Platinum Visa® with no annual Fees
and FREE Rewards

Wed. 12 pm -5 pm
Fri. 12 pm - 5 pm

• Mortgage and Home Equity Loans
If you work for, or are retired from the USPS
call (877) 337-2728, visit any of our convenient
branches or join online at www.postcitycu.org.
Minimum $300 monthly direct deposit required into ExpressPay Checking to waive
monthly fee. Please visit www.postcitycu.org for complete rates and terms.

wEST SACRAMEnTO
3775 Industrial Blvd.
West Sacramento, CA 95799
Toll Free: (800) 300-7053
Mon.–Thur. 9 am–5 pm
Fri. 9 am–6 pm
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BRANCH #2902 OFFICERS

SHOP STEWARD LIST

PRESIDENT
• Ray Hill
EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT
• James Perryman
SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT
• Alex Lopez
VICE PRESIDENT
• Albert Reyes
TREASURER/FINANCIAL SECRETARY
• Dan Gorman
RECORDING SECRETARY

Agoura Hills Chief S.S.

Greg Gaddis

Chatsworth Chief S.S.

Angel Hale

Fillmore Chief S.S.

Call Office

Moorpark Chief S.S.

Call Office

No. Hollywood Chief S.S.

Louie Rodriguez

Chandler

Greg Gaddis

Laurel Canyon

Louie Rodriguez

Studio City

Greg Gaddis

Valley Village

Louie Rodriguez

Northridge Chief S.S.

Onofre Varela

Porter Ranch

Onofre Varela

Ojai Chief S.S.

Philip Navarro

Oxnard Chief S.S.

Johnny Boyd
Kathi Albritten

• Laura Rowe

Pablo Galvan
DIRECTOR OF RETIREES
• Bev Sucich
MBA/NSBA REPRESENTATIVE
• Chris Alessi
HEALTH BENEFIT OFFICER
• Joe Gutierrez

Alternate S.S.

Louie Tanglao

Pacoima Chief S.S.

Lorie Moore

Reseda Chief S.S.

Call Office

San Fernando Chief S.S.

Albert Reyes

M.C.A.

Albert Reyes

North Hills

Albert Reyes

Sylmar / Main Office

Martin Diaz
Robert Tracy

ASSISTANT HEALTH BENEFITS REPRESENTATIVE
• Mary Stanley
SGT.-AT-ARMS

Santa Paula Chief S.S

Marcos Aldrete

Simi Valley Chief S.S.

Sandra Dearborn
Dan Cabrera

• Bob Golden
TRUSTEES:

Mt. McCoy Station S.S.

Sal Lopez

Thousand Oaks Chief S.S.

Alex Lopez

• Greg Gaddis

Walter Williams

• David Hyman

Mary Stanley

• Louie Rodriguez
• Frank Salazar
• Walter Williams
WEBMASTER

Newbury Park S.S.

Alex Lopez

Ventura Chief S.S.

Laura Rowe

East Ventura S.S.

Laura Rowe

Woodland Hills Chief S.S.

Nilo Gatus
Manny Gonzalez

• Larry Orcutt
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(818) 700-9615 FAX (818) 700-9755

Canoga Park, CA

br2902@sbcglobal.net
www.nalcbranch2902.org

Address Service Requested

Calendar of Events

BEV SUCICH

MAR
7
			

Will be serving

MAR 19
			

Dinner at the
March Union Meeting
Dinner starts at 6:00pm

MAR 10

MAR 20
MAR 21
			
			
APR
4
			
APR 15
APR 16
			

Executive Board Meeting 6:00pm
Executive Council Meeting 7:00pm
Daylight Savings Time Begins
Retiree Lunch 11:00am
Golden Panda-Simi Valley
Spring Begins
Regular Branch Meeting 7:00pm
Union Hall-Chatsworth
Dinner served 6:00pm
Executive Board Meeting 6:00pm
Executive Council Meeting 7:00pm
Tax Day
Retiree Lunch 11:00am
Golden Panda-Simi Valley

APR 18
Regular Branch Meeting 7:00pm
			 Union Hall-Chatsworth
			Snacks Served
MAY
2
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Executive Board Meeting 6:00pm
Executive Council Meeting 7:00pm
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